
 

Board of Adjustment 

Thursday, December 1, 2016 

7:00 PM 

Hood Room, Matthews Town Hall 

 

AGENDA 

 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. INVOCATION 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

IV.        APPEAL: BA 2016-5, Signage at 324 North Trade Street 

 

V. VARIANCE REQUEST: BA 2016-6, Sight Triangle at 110 Matthews Station Street 

 

VI. VARIANCE REQUEST: BA 2016-7 Matthews Festival Transitional Parking and Setbacks 

 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

.          

 



MINUTES 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

THURSDAY, November 3, 2016 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

 
PRESENT: Vice Chairman Jerry Meek; Members Jeanne Moore, and Cecil Sumners; Alternate 

Members Thomas Lawing, Gary Smith and Peter Tuz; Attorney Robert Blythe; Senior 
Planner Jay Camp and Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Shana Robertson 

 
ABSENT: Chairman Jim Jiles, Member Jim Mortimer, Alternate Member Peter Tuz 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION: 
 
Vice Chairman Jerry Meek called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM 
 
Thomas Lawing and Gary Smith were voting members for tonight’s meeting. 
 
Mr. Greg Smith gave the invocation. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 
Jeanne Moore made a motion to approve the minutes of the April 11, 2016 meeting. Cecil Sumners 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
SWEARING IN: 
 
Senior Planner Jay Camp and Mr. Daniel Hicks were sworn in by Vice Chairman Jerry Meek. 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST: BA 2016-3, Commercial Vehicle at 2915 Windsor Chase  
 
STAFF REPORT:  
Mr. Camp addressed the Board. He stated that the owner of the property at 2915 Windsor Chase Drive, 
tax parcel number 193-461-16 was requesting a variance to continue parking a large commercial vehicle 
at the residence. Code Enforcement Officer, Carlo McKoy, noticed the truck parked at the location while 
conducting other business in September 2016 and a Notice of Violation was issued. The owner, Mr. 
Daniel Hicks, stated that he had parked the truck at the location for ten years.  Staff cannot verify how 
long but images on Google Earth confirmed the truck in the driveway since 2007. The Town has never 
allowed large commercial vehicles in residential neighborhoods and only several years ago added 
language that allows one medium sized commercial vehicle to be parked overnight at a residence. Mr. 
Hicks is a Rapid Response Technician for Caterpillar Commercial Generators. He is an on call employee 
required to have a take home vehicle.  
 
Mr. Camp read into record Section 155.607.1.C.14.f on the Town of Matthews Unified Development 
Ordinance that stated “In the single family residential districts, one mid-range commercial vehicle may be 
parked overnight (9 PM to 7 AM) on the same lot as an occupied dwelling unit.”  The definition stated that 
the maximum height allowed is eight feet. Mr. McKoy measured the truck to be nine feet, two inches. 
Documents were presented to the Board including photographs of the truck and its location and the 
Notice of Violation that was issued on September 19, 2016.  The notice was sent to the property owners 
by US mail and they were given thirty days to appeal. Property owners did meet the variance request 
timeframe for appeal. 
 
Mr. Camp stated that it could be possible for the Board to issue a sunset clause to allow the vehicle to 
remain until it is replaced with a smaller truck. Caterpillar indicated that a smaller truck that would fit the 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

2 

Town ordinance could be ordered for Mr. Hicks. If this is the case, it could be possible for the Board of 
Adjustment to grant a variance with a sunset clause to allow the vehicle to remain until it is replaced  
 
Mr. Meek asked about time parameters or conditions in regards to the proposed sunset variance. 
Attorney Robert Blythe answered that the Board could consider a variance with a condition that could be 
a one year time frame for replacing to a conforming or removing the vehicle that was in violation.  
 
Ms. Moore asked if notices were sent to neighbors. Mr. Camp noted that notices were sent per State 
Statue to all adjacent owners and those across the street. A letter was received by the Town in support 
but could not be submitted into record as it is considered hearsay. The neighbor who sent the letter was 
unable to attend in person due to scheduling conflict.  
 
Mr. Tom Lawing confirmed the height of the vehicle and asked what the gross vehicle weight rating (or 
GVRW) was for the commercial truck.  Mr. Camp referred the question to the applicant. 
 
Mr. Daniel (Danny) Hicks, 2915 Windsor Chase Drive addressed the Board.  Mr. Hicks stated that the 
truck weighed twenty three to twenty four thousand pounds. Mr. Hicks added into record a letter from his 
Supervisor regarding job responsibilities.  Mr. Hicks stated that he is a rapid response technician and on 
call twenty four hours a day, seven days a week.  His job requires him to maintain and service emergency 
backup generators at hospitals, banks, and high-rise buildings. Most generators in Charlotte are serviced 
through his company. He had been in his current position since 2007 with the commercial sized vehicle at 
his residence.  Because of his close proximity to Novant Matthews Hospital and always being on call he is 
required to have his service vehicle at his home.   
 
Mr. Sumners asked if most buildings have back up generators as part of the stricter building code.  Mr. 
Hicks answered that hospitals, banks, and high-rise buildings are required to have a lifesaving backup 
generator system. Mr. Hicks said his job is to service those generators when they go down, provide 
maintenance, and inspect quarterly. Mr. Sumners asked where the main office location was. Mr. Hicks 
answered that the office was located at Sunset Road and W.T. Harris.  
 
Ms. Moore asked how often he is called to respond outside of normal work hours.  Mr. Hicks said that he 
gets called at night two to three times a week and it was not uncommon for him to arrive home for the day 
at 10:00 PM.  Ms. Moore asked if a request had been made to his employer for a smaller vehicle Mr. 
Hicks stated that he had requested and his supervisor would consider.  At the time when Mr. Hicks 
received the Notice of Violation, a midsized truck was not available.  The company will need to order a 
smaller vehicle for Mr. Hicks and it could take up to a year to be delivered. 
 
Mr.  Meek clarified that it was Mr. Hicks understanding that the Company would grant him another truck 
that was in compliance with the Town Ordinance.  Mr. Hicks stated that was correct.  It would be the 
same 750 class of truck that he currently had but a smaller weight class. Mr. Meek asked if any 
discussion has been made with the employer as to what would happen if the variance was denied. Mr. 
Hicks stated that he did not know what would happen but that it would be up to the administration and he 
was unsure what their options would be. Mr. Meek asked how long Mr. Hicks has lived at the property 
located at 2915 Windsor Chase Drive. Mr. Hicks had been a resident at the address for 20 years. 
   
Mr. Sumners ask how many Rapid Response Technicians had large home trucks. Mr. Hick stated there 
were thirty five total technicians with trucks and eight of the thirty-five were his size or larger.  
 
DELIBERATION: 
 
Ms. Moore said that the large truck was a violation and if exchanged for a smaller vehicle, the large truck 
could be still usable to the Company.  She felt that a request should be made for a smaller truck that 
would be compliant with the Town ordinance and place a time frame on completion of that action. Mr. 
Lawing said that he agreed. Mr. Sumners said that Caterpillar is a large company and should be able to 
comply with the request.   
 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

3 

Mr. Meek asked the Board members if there was a time frame.  Ms. Moore felt eighteen months should 
give adequate time for the request and arrival of a compliant vehicle.  Mr. Meek asked Mr. Blyth if 
something were to happen could the applicant return after the eighteen months. Mr. Blythe said that they 
could.  
 
FINDING OF FACT 

 
1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to 

demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  
 
Mr. Meeks stated that the applicant has had this vehicle on the property for ten years. It is necessary 
to his job duties and benefits the community by allowing emergency response efforts.  
 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a 
variance.)  
 
Peculiarities with the size and shape of the lot makes it difficult to store the vehicle on the parcel and to 
make it unseen from other homes and compliance with the Ordinance. 
 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  
 
Mr. Hicks has lived at the residential location for twenty three years. Ten of those years has had a 
nonconforming truck.  
 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Title, because public 
safety is secured and justice is achieved.  
 
The spirit of the Ordinance will be enhanced by the temporary time variance that would be conditional 
on Mr. Hicks replacing the nonconforming truck with a conforming vehicle in an eighteen month time 
period. 

 
Ms. Moore motioned that the variance request be granted to allow a commercial vehicle at 2915 Windsor 
Chase with a condition that within eighteen months the applicant will replacing the nonconforming 
commercial vehicle with a conforming vehicle. Mr. Lawing seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST: BA 2016-4, Budd Law Group at 352 E Charles 
 
Laura Budd was sworn in by Mr. Meek. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  
 
Mr. Camp reviewed the property at 352 E Charles Street and stated that the lot is currently under 
consideration for the construction of a new office building that will total approximately 4,000 square feet. 
The rezoning decision is scheduled for November 14, 2016. Before a decision can be made, the proposal 
must meet all applicable requirements within the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Staff has 
identified three independent aspects of the proposal that do not meet code.  
 
The first variance request is for front setback within the Downtown Overlay District. Properties within the 
Downtown Overlay must adhere to special architectural and site plan requirements. Front setbacks are 
determined by the Downtown Streetscape Plan. For Charles Street, a maximum setback of twenty nine 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

4 

feet from the back of the curb. The CSX right-of-way of two hundred feet encroaches onto the front 
portion of the site making it impossible to build a new structure where code dictates. The proposed front 
setback as shown on the plans is approximately thirty five feet from the back of curb to the front porch 
wall of the building. This represents a variance of six feet.  
 
The second variance request is for the driveway width. The applicant proposed an eighteen foot wide 
driveway that is flared out to twenty four feet where it intersects with Charles Street. Standard driveway 
width for two way traffic is twenty four feet. The applicant wanted to keep an office cottage feel and stated 
that due to the low volume of traffic anticipated, a two way drive would not be necessary.  
 
The final variance is requesting a lot width adjustment to current Town Ordinance. The UDO code 
requires that 75% of lot frontage must be occupied by the building. With the current lot width of 99.68 feet 
it would be difficult to get the building to occupy seventy five percent plus the driveway and a landscape 
buffer.  Town staff had recognized this being a problem and in 2008 a text amendment was approved that 
would allow an applicant to subtract out twelve feet of driveway width and the landscape buffer from the 
75% requirement. It was discovered after the application was submitted that the approved text 
amendment was not included into the 2014 adopted UDO. 
 
Mr. Lawing asked if other properties are in violation of the missing text amendment.  Mr. Camp said that 
those would be considered legal nonconforming and a text amendment will be added soon to the UDO to 
correct the issue. 
   
Ms. Moore asked if the third variance request depended on the second variance request.  Mr. Camp 
stated that they were inter related. He added that the Town Engineer had been consulted on the driveway 
reduction.  Their suggestion was to flair the driveway width at the street to allow for cars to pass safely 
from street. The requested eighteen feet is wide enough to allow cars to pass slowly the flair would help 
entering and exiting safely from Charles Street. Parking was added due to Town Council and Planning 
Board concerns.  The site will have thirteen spaces including a two car residential style garage. 
  
Mr. Sumners noted that the sidewalk seemed narrow and level with the street. Mr. Camp stated that the 
applicant had plans to clean up the overgrowth on the front that has covered the five foot wide sidewalk.  
Staff will also look into the concern. 
 
Mr. Lawing asked if the two hundred foot CSX right-of-way affected other property setback requirements 
down Charles Street. Mr. Camp said that this parcel was the last in the Downtown Overlay and was 
required to build per Downtown Overlay standards of a twenty nine foot maximum setback.  
 
Mr. Meek asked if explanation was made as to why an eighteen foot verses the twenty four foot driveway 
should be allowed.  Mr. Camp stated that the applicant wanted to split the difference in the residential 
driveway standard of twelve feet and the commercial required twenty four feet. If the variance is not 
approved the applicant will be required to reduce the size of the structure and it may give a feeling of 
more asphalt and less building structure. Mr. Camp continued that it was the applicants wish to save the 
mature trees and green space in the rear of the property. Due to this they were not wanting to push the 
structure back.  
 
Laura Budd with The Budd Law Group, 10550 Independence Pointe Parkway, Suite 301, Matthews, NC 
28105 stated that she had been a Lawyer and practicing in Matthews for fifteen years.  It is her wish to 
move her practice back to Downtown.  Images were presented to the Board of the current structure and 
the proposed new site plan and elevation. It was Ms. Budd’s wish to preserve the current structure but 
due to conditions was unable to do so.  Regarding the first variance request for increased maxim setback 
within the Downtown Overlay, the CSX right-of-way is considered federal property and if built upon Ms. 
Budd noted that she would be forced to remove. The Driveway request coincides with Ms. Budd’s wish to 
add an eight foot landscape buffer to hide the neighboring post office. She continued that the requested 
eighteen foot driveway with the twenty four foot flair at the base was a six foot difference between the 
standard for a residential and a commercial driveway. The request was not to just accommodate the 
landscape buffer but the traffic flow expected.  The business does not have many drop in clients and most 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

5 

are by appointment only. Ms. Budd stated that they were a smaller firm having only seven to nine 
employees in the office daily. 
  
Ms. Moore clarified that this property was the last within the Downtown Overlay District and asked about 
the adjacent property that was held by a trust. Mr. Camp stated that the adjacent trust parcel was just 
outside the Downtown Overlay.  
  
Mr. Meek pointed out that the three variances had to all be approved as they were linked together.  One 
variance would not work without the approval of the others. 
  
DELIBERATION: 
 
Ms. Moore stated that it needs to be considered that it is the last parcel in the Overlay District and the 
applicant is trying to make it work. The Railways right-of-way was the factor in stopping the applicant from 
being compliant with the first request.   
 
Mr. Lawing stated that he was comfortable will the first and third variance request being the hardship that 
the railroad was causing and the missing approved text that would have made the third request 
nonexistent. The second request would need to be thought through.  
 
Ms. Moore asked if the applicant had to comply with the twenty four foot wide driveway, how their plans 
would be effected.  Mr. Camp stated that it would not allow the desired eight foot screening buffer. Mr. 
Meek stated it would come down to having a twenty four foot drive or having a landscape buffer. Mr. 
Smith said they could do the driveway and buffer but it would take the building structure down from sixty 
five feet to fifty foot frontage width. Ms. Moore stated that the building structure looks like a home. And felt 
the twenty four foot driveway width would throw off the feel. Mr. Sumners agreed that the eighteen foot 
wide driveway fit with the feel of the structure. Mr. Lawing said that he esthetically liked look of the 
eighteen foot wide driveway but questioned the criteria that would allow them to vote for the eighteen 
verses the twenty four.  Mr. Camp added that Charles Street was twenty feet wide and only two feet wider 
than the requested variance width. Mr. Smith stated that based on the setbacks the placement of the 
driveway at twenty four feet wide would be against the building.  This would be the location of the 
Handicap ramp and presents an unsafe situation.  
 
All motions are to be contingent on the site plan as presented. Changes that could not be approved 
administratively would need to be refiled through the Board of Adjustments. 
 
Findings of Fact 

 
Variance One- Extend the maximum front setback   

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate 
that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  
 
It is the determination of The Town of Matthews Board of the existence of the CSX right of way and the property 
cannot be redeveloped and meet the maximum build-to line causing unnecessary hardship. 
 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a 
variance.)  
 
The hardship results from the nature of the property and in particular to the CSX right of way. 
 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

6 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  
 
The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant. 
 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Title, because public 
safety is secured and justice is achieved.  
 
The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Town of Matthews 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Mr. Lawing motioned to extend the maximum front setback to no more than three feet beyond the CSX 
right-of-way contingent on the site plan as presented to the Town of Matthews. Ms. Moore seconded the 
motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Variance Two- Driveway width 

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate 
that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  
 
The Unnecessary hardship would result from the requiring a twenty four foot wide driveway by virtue of the nature 
of the property and where it is located and a reduction in the amount of building space or reduction of landscape 
buffer. 
 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a 
variance.)  
 
The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property. 
 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  
 
The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant. 
 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Title, because public 
safety is secured and justice is achieved.  

 
The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Title, because public 
safety is secured and allowing for development of the property that will appear appropriate to the 
location.  

 
Ms. Moore motioned to approve the variance to allow an eighteen foot driveway that would flair to twenty 
four feet where it intersects Charles Street in lieu of the standard twenty four feet contingent on the site 
plan as presented to the Town of Matthews. Mr. Smith seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
 
Variance Three- Allow less than a 75% lot frontage 

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate 
that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  
 
The Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of 75% lot frontage requirement. 
 



Board of Adjustment 
November 3, 2016 

 
 

7 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a 
variance.)  
 
The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property. 
 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  
 
The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant. 
 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Title, because public 
safety is secured and justice is achieved.  

 
The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the Ordinance.  

 
Mr. Lawing motioned to approve the variance to allow less than a 75% lot frontage requirement 
contingent on the site plan as presented to the Town of Matthews. Mr. Sumners seconded the motion and 
it passed unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Ms. Moore made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:09 PM. Mr. Lawing seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Shana Robertson  
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk  



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Appeal for Signage at 324 North Trade 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Summary of Request 

 
The applicant requests an appeal to a Notice of Violation and a determination that signage 
in the Downtown Overlay is internally illuminated.   

  
Background 

 
Truliant Federal Credit Union is a tenant within a recently completely building at the new 
324 North End development. In late September, Town Staff became aware of new, inter-
nally illuminated signs that were installed at the tenant space. The Matthews Downtown 
Overlay District provisions within the UDO prohibit internal illumination of signage. On Oc-
tober 11, 2016, Code Enforcement Officer Carlo McKoy and Zoning Administrator Mary Jo 
Gollnitz issue a joint Notice of Violation and Determination that the signs were indeed inter-
nally illuminated and were not permitted.  
 
Sign permits within the Town of Matthews are first reviewed by Town Staff before being for-
warded to the County for approval. Town staff approved the sign permit for Truiliant on Oc-
tober 22, 2015.  Although the Master Sign Plan for the site that was approved by the Mat-
thews Town Board explicitly prohibits internal illumination, the contractor checked the 
“illumination” box on the sign permit. The Matthews reviewer did not catch this discrepancy 
and approved the permit in error. According to David Owens in Introduction to Zon-
ing ,vested right cannot be obtained by the issuance of a permit that is issued “mistakenly 
or illegally”. For vested right to be considered, the permit that is received must be valid at 
the time of issuance.  
 
 
 

Unified Development Ordinance Requirement 
 
Section 155.608.14  -   
A. SIGNS PROHIBITED IN THE DOWNTOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT. The following signs 

are prohibited in the Downtown Overlay District:  
  1. Any structure or any material for a sign face which is designed to be an in-
ternally illuminated wall, projecting, awning, or freestanding sign, whether or not it has any 
electrical or mechanical components that create internal light;  



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Interpretation of Sign Type 

 
In Section 155.608.5.D, Sign Illumination is defined as follows: 
 
An illuminated sign is any sign from which artificial light emanates:  
i) by means of exposed lighting on the surface of the sign, such as neon tubing (internal 
illumination); 
 
 ii) through transparent or translucent material from a source within the sign (internal illumi-
nation); 
 
 iii) by a hidden light source directing light onto the background surface which creates a ha-
lo effect of opaque lettering or other message elements (external illumination); or 
 
 iv) a sign which reflects artificial light from a source intentionally directed upon it (external 
illumination). Signs and other sources of illumination adjacent to public streets are subject 
to the provisions of the North Carolina General Statutes 136-32.2.  
 
 
In this case, staff has determined that due to the style of signage and materials used, it 
falls into category ii, meaning that the individual letters are translucent and lit from within. 
The photos on the following page demonstrate the difference between internal illumination 
and halo illumination. Matthews has not allowed internally illuminated signs in the Down-
town area for about 20 years. Most examples of signs will be either be illuminated from an 
external light, for instance a “gooseneck” light shining down on a sign, halo lighting or ex-
posed neon accents. The intent of this code is to differentiate the downtown area from typi-
cal modern areas of the Town by requiring a more traditional signage type. Internally lit 
channel letter signs and faceplate style signs with internal fluorescent lights are standard 
fare in most modern shopping centers and strip malls. As part of the original Matthews 
Downtown Design Guidelines, signage was restricted to protect the historic character of 
Downtown.   

 
 

 



Internal Illumination  - Note lighting showing through weep holes at the bottom of 
the letters. Light is emanating from within each individual channel letter 



Halo Lighting - Note individual opaque letters with light that is emitted around the 
lettering over a solid backing 







srobertson
Typewritten Text
12/01/2016

srobertson
Typewritten Text
7:00 PM

srobertson
Typewritten Text

srobertson
Received



























































Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for 110 Matthews Station Street 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Summary of Request 

 
The applicant requests a variance to allow a new patio with brick wall to be located within 
the sight triangle in Downtown Matthews.  

  
Background 

 
The owner of the property at 110 Matthews Station, tax parcel id 21501235, seeks to cre-
ate a new outdoor patio within an area currently used for parking. In late 2015, planning 
staff proposed the idea of creating a new urban open space adjacent to North Trade Street 
to replace the parking spaces beside the former Dilworth Coffee location. At the 2016 Town 
Planning Conference, staff was directed to work with the property owner, Lat Purser and 
Associates, to move the concept forward. Lat Purser is currently working with a restaurant 
tenant for the space and proposes an outdoor patio that would replace the two parking 
spaces closest to North Trade Street. To create separation between the outdoor dining ar-
ea and the public sidewalk, a brick knee wall is proposed to delineate the space and create 
an urban edge against the sidewalk. If a zoning variance is secured, the applicant must al-
so seek site plan approval from the Town Board for the proposed patio. Matthews Station 
was a public private partnership between the Town and Lat Purser. Similar to the rezoning 
process, the variance must be in place for the proposal to move forward as currently de-
signed.  
 

Unified Development Ordinance Requirement 
 
In the UDO, sight triangles are defined as follows: 
.  

 
 



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Unified Development Ordinance Definitions and Requirements 

 
The UDO allows for a modified sight triangle in the Downtown area of 25’x25’. Specifically, 
the code dictates that low walls that visually and physically separate the public right-of-way 
from private use areas are appropriate reasons for reducing the sight triangle.    

 

 
 



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Town Staff Review of Request 

 
The applicant has proposed an example of an “urban sight triangle” concept utilized in ur-
ban areas within Charlotte. Instead of measuring the sight triangle from the intersection of 
the street rights-of-way, the measurement follows the curb line. In this situation, due to the 
presence of cars parked on street, vehicles leaving Matthews Station and turning on North 
Trade must pull forward of the stop bar to see around the parked vehicles. The presence of 
cars parked in the existing parking area that is to be replaced with a patio is arguably more 
of a barrier to sight visibility that the proposed 32” wall. 
 
Town Engineer Susan Habina Woolard has reviewed the proposal and determined that the 
wall is low enough that there are no safety concerns with the variance request. An email 
with her feedback is provided within this report. 

 
 

 



Example Findings of Fact  

In reaching a decision on a variance request, the Board shall make 
 findings upholding all of the following criteria:  

  

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, 
in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  

The property owner seeks to reduce the level of sight distance conflict by removing parked cars from the corner 
and replacing them with a low wall.  

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. (Hardships 
resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood 
or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.)  

The location is within the downtown area at the corner of two intersecting public streets where parked cars are 
located close to the intersection, potentially obstructing visibility.  

 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing property 
with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created 
hardship.  

The applicant seeks to improve the corner and improve safety. The applicant did not create the hardship.  

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this Title, public safety is secured, and sub-
stantial justice is achieved.  

The requested variance would help improve the urban design of the area and contribute to a safer environment for 
pedestrians and drivers by reducing the sight visibility concerns created by the vehicles parked in the sight trian-
gle.  

 



Findings of Fact Standards for Zoning Variances 

  

In granting any zoning variance, the Board of Adjustment shall make findings that the spirit of the ordinance shall be ob-
served, public safety and welfare shall be secured, and substantial justice shall be done. To reach these findings, the Board 

of Adjustment shall consider the following 7 standards:  

  

1. That special or unique circumstances or conditions or practical difficulties exist which apply to the land, 
buildings or uses involved which are not generally applicable to other land, buildings, structures, or uses in 
the same zoning districts.  

  

2. That the special conditions or circumstances or practical difficulties do not result from the actions of the 
property owner or applicant, their agent, employee, or contractor. Errors made by such persons in the de-
velopment, construction, siting or marketing process shall not be grounds for a variance except in cases 
where a foundation survey submitted to the Planning Director, or designee, before a contractor proceeds 
beyond the foundation stage has not revealed an error which is discovered later. 

  

3. That the unique hardship situations cited by the applicant are not hardships resulting from personal or 
household members’ circumstances which would no longer be applicable to the location if the applicant or 
household was no longer present at the property. 

  

4. That the strict enforcement of this Title would deprive the owner or applicant of reasonable use of the 
property that is substantially consistent with the intent of this Title. 

  

5. That the granting of a variance will not result in advantages or special privileges to the applicant or prop-
erty owner that this Title denies to other land, structures, or uses in the same district, and it is the minimum 
variance necessary to provide relief. 

  

6. That the proposed use and the appearance of any proposed addition or alteration will be compatible with, 
and not negatively impact, nearby properties. 

  

7. That the variance shall not be materially detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons residing or 
working in the neighborhood. Consideration of the effects of the variance shall include but not be limited to, 
increases in activity, noise, or traffic resulting from any expansion of uses allowed by the variance.  



Location of Proposed Patio 

Location of Proposed Patio 



11/23/2016 Matthewsnc.gov Mail  Re: Matthews Patio

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=ab8bf1699e&view=pt&q=susan%20sight%20triangle&qs=true&search=query&th=158493a18d06d312&siml=158493… 1/3

Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>

Re: Matthews Patio 
1 message

Susan Habina Woolard, PE <shwoolard@matthewsnc.gov> Wed, Nov 9, 2016 at 8:14 AM
To: Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>
Cc: CJ O'Neill <cjoneill@matthewsnc.gov>

Good morning, Jay!

Thank you for the opportunity to review and provide input for this patio. We have just begun
researching sight triangles and intersection sight distance so as to provide clear definition and direction
for the Town's position on these design tools. The timing on this is perfect to help better shape our
policy.

Generally speaking, a downtown environment has less need for sight triangles measured as such a
setback because of the nature of the traffic  slower, especially in Matthews with the speed tables,
and more observant to the myriad of visual inputs from the downtown environment such as
pedestrians, shops, and downtown aesthetic treatments.

Taking a cue from the City of Charlotte, the Charlotte sight triangle policy refers to obstructions in the
sight triangle being between 30"72" which is considered the sight "window" for the driver. As you
noted, the wall encroaches somewhat into that window, but the people sitting at the tables within that
zone would encroach even more. However, also in practice in Charlotte is that sight triangles in the
downtown area are measured from the projected curbline intersection if not exempted altogether. The
second exhibit shows the application of the downtown sight triangle measured from the curb. 

The exhibits provided by the developer clearly indicate the purpose of the sight triangle being as
visibility for approaching vehicles and how adding the patio as shown in the sketch will not hinder the
vehicle driver's ability to see other vehicles. Additionally, in my experience, approach sight triangles
measured from the r/w in a downtown setting is not appropriate; therefore I would support a variance
to measure these triangles from the curbline instead of the r/w.

As an aside, I would really like to see bicycle parking incorporated into this plan. Outdoor dining and
cycling are complementary activities.

Please let me know if I can be of further assistance.

Susan HabinaWoolard, PE
Town Engineer
Town of Matthews
9802857118 cell
7047081243 direct
shwoolard@matthewsnc.gov
www.matthewsnc.gov

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 132, Public Records, this electronic mail message and any attachments hereto, as
well as any electronic mail message(s) that may be sent in response to it may be considered public record and as such are subject to
request and review.

tel:980-285-7118
tel:704-708-1243
mailto:shwoolard@matthewsnc.gov
http://www.matthewsnc.gov/














srobertson
Received



















Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for Matthews Festival 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

Summary of Request 
 

The applicant requests variances to transitional right-of-way requirements for both parking 
and the construction of two new buildings.  

  
Background 

 
The Matthews Festival Shopping Center at the corner of US 74 and NC 51 is currently un-
dergoing a rezoning from the old Conditional district to B-1 SCD and B-H (CD). The owners 
are pursuing a renovation of the entire center, demolition of some structures and the con-
struction of two new outparcel buildings. 
 
Staff has identified two variances that are required for the rezoning to move forward as cur-
rently designed. Within the UDO, the Town has requirements for the reservation of land for 
future right-of-way expansion called transitional right-of-way. The purpose of these require-
ments is to reserve land for roadway expansion and ensure that buildings and improve-
ments are not disturbed if a road is widened. For US 74, the expected width of the ROW 
has for many years been 350’. Currently, the NCDOT is designing the expansion of the 
road from 4 to 10 lanes. Work is planned to begin around 2022. The most recent maps pro-
vided by NCDOT indicate that the widening in this location can be accomplished within the 
current 200’ ROW thus negating the need for additional land. Although the widening plans 
are only a draft at this time, there is no evidence thus far that more land is needed, mean-
ing that the existing improvements at the site would not be disturbed.    
 

 
Summary of Each Variance Request 

 
Variance 1: Allow parking located in the transitional ROW to be counted toward mini-
mum required parking for the site.  
 
If no new construction was occurring, the site could continue to use the existing parking 
that was in place prior to the transitional ROW requirements being put in place. However, 
due to the construction of new buildings and renovation of the parking area, the site must 
meet current code. Normally, the only parking allowed in the transitional ROW is overflow 
parking above and beyond required minimum parking.  
.  

 
 



Matthews Board of Adjustment 
Variance Request for 2915 Windsor Chase Drive 
December 1, 2016 
 
 

 
Summary of  Each Variance Request Cont’d 

 
Variance 2: Allow buildings to be constructed at least 40’ from the current right of 
way.  
When measuring for setbacks for new buildings where transitional ROW is required, the 
measurement for the front setback is typically taken from the back of the proposed ROW. 
In this case, the district has a 40’ front setback. The transitional ROW is about 75’, so the 
setback would be 115’ from the edge of the current ROW. The applicant indicates on the 
attached variance exhibit that the building is at the 40’ setback from the current ROW alt-
hough it looks as if  portions of the new building may be a few feet forward 
 

 
UDO Requirements 

 
 

Section 155.601.18 states “affected property owners shall have the right to request a vari-
ance to transitional setback or yard requirements to the Board of Adjustment. In granting 
relief, the Board may impose reasonable and appropriate conditions and safeguards to pro-
tect the interest of neighboring properties”.  
 



Example Findings of Fact  

In reaching a decision on a variance request, the Board shall make 
 findings upholding all of the following criteria:  

  

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of this Title. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, 
in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  

The property owner seeks to count existing parking spaces toward required parking. The inability to count these 
spaces reduces the amount of development that can occur and results in a property that is overparked, thus using 
the land inefficiently. The proposed locations of the buildings from the current ROW are based on plans from 
NCDOT that are not expected to change significantly enough to impact the site.   

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. (Hardships 
resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood 
or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.)  

The property is not extremely deep yet has a large amount of road frontage with numerous parking spaces along 
the roadway. 

 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing property 
with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created 
hardship.  

The applicant seeks to reuse spaces constructed prior to the transitional ROW requirements that were adopted in 
2000, 13 years after development of this site in 1987.   

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this Title, public safety is secured, and sub-
stantial justice is achieved.  

There is no public safety concern with the request. The buildings are located with a 40’ setback from existing ROW 
and what is expected to be the future ROW once the road is expanded.  

 



Findings of Fact Standards for Zoning Variances 

  

In granting any zoning variance, the Board of Adjustment shall make findings that the spirit of the ordinance shall be ob-
served, public safety and welfare shall be secured, and substantial justice shall be done. To reach these findings, the Board 

of Adjustment shall consider the following 7 standards:  

  

1. That special or unique circumstances or conditions or practical difficulties exist which apply to the land, 
buildings or uses involved which are not generally applicable to other land, buildings, structures, or uses in 
the same zoning districts.  

  

2. That the special conditions or circumstances or practical difficulties do not result from the actions of the 
property owner or applicant, their agent, employee, or contractor. Errors made by such persons in the de-
velopment, construction, siting or marketing process shall not be grounds for a variance except in cases 
where a foundation survey submitted to the Planning Director, or designee, before a contractor proceeds 
beyond the foundation stage has not revealed an error which is discovered later. 

  

3. That the unique hardship situations cited by the applicant are not hardships resulting from personal or 
household members’ circumstances which would no longer be applicable to the location if the applicant or 
household was no longer present at the property. 

  

4. That the strict enforcement of this Title would deprive the owner or applicant of reasonable use of the 
property that is substantially consistent with the intent of this Title. 

  

5. That the granting of a variance will not result in advantages or special privileges to the applicant or prop-
erty owner that this Title denies to other land, structures, or uses in the same district, and it is the minimum 
variance necessary to provide relief. 

  

6. That the proposed use and the appearance of any proposed addition or alteration will be compatible with, 
and not negatively impact, nearby properties. 

  

7. That the variance shall not be materially detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons residing or 
working in the neighborhood. Consideration of the effects of the variance shall include but not be limited to, 
increases in activity, noise, or traffic resulting from any expansion of uses allowed by the variance.  



29 SPACES

12 SPACES

13 SPACES

16 SPACES

16 SPACES

18 SPACES

18 SPACES

19 SPACES

20 SPACES

17 SPACES6 SPACES

7 SPACES 12 SPACES

8 
SP

AC
ES

5 
SP

AC
ES

10
 S

PA
CE

S

12 SPACES

10 SPACES

16 SPACES

17 SPACES

19 SPACES

19 SPACES

15
 S

PA
CE

S

15 SPACES

2 
SP

AC
ES

12 SPACES

12 SPACES

12 SPACES

9 SPACES

4 
SP

AC
ES

8 SPACES
11 SPACES

12 SPACES

7 SPACES7 
SP

AC
ES

7 
SP

AC
ES

6 SPACES 6 
SP

AC
ES

6 SPACES

14
 S

PA
CE

S

17 SPACES 17
 S

PA
CE

S

15 SPACES 12
 S

PA
CE

S

16 SPACES 16
 S

PA
CE

S

13 SPACES 14
 S

PA
CE

S 15 SPACES 15
 S

PA
CE

S 18 SPACES

24
 S

PA
CE

S

24 SPACES 24
 S

PA
CE

S 25 SPACES 22
 S

PA
CE

S 22 SPACES 25
 S

PA
CE

S

15 SPACES
8 SPACES

25 SPACES

8 SPACES4 SPACES4 SPACES8 SPACES8 SPACES4 SPACES

11
 S

PA
CE

S

30 SPACES

MONUMENT
SIGN

31.8' HIGH

MONUMENT
SIGN

19.5' HIGH

MONUMENT
SIGN

31.1' HIGH

US HIGHWAY 74
EAST INDEPENDENCE BOULEVARD

200' RIGHT OF WAY (PER REF. PLAT)

US HIGHWAY 74
EAST INDEPENDENCE BOULEVARD

200' RIGHT OF WAY (PER REF. PLAT)

N
C
 H

IG
H
W

A
Y 5

1
M

A
TTH

EW
S
 TO

W
N
S
H
IP PA

R
KW

A
Y

V
A
R
IA

B
LE R

IG
H
T O

F W
A
Y (PER

 R
EF. PLA

T)

318,131 SQ.FT.
7.303 ACRES

HD Development of Maryland, Inc., n/f
Parcel # 193-231-33

Duke Power Co., n/f
Parcel # 193-231-03

Property, LLC, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-11

New Private Restaurant

Holdings, LLC, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-08

Texas Roadhouse

Realty Income Corp, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-10

Realty Income Corp, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-07

Shopping Center, LLC, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-19

Matthews Township

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C
en

te
r,

 L
LC

, 
n/

f
Pa

rc
el

 #
 1

9
3
-2

9
2
-1

8

M
at

th
ew

s 
To

w
ns

hi
p

Shopping Center, LLC, n/f
Parcel # 193-292-17

Matthews Township

Parcel # 193-292-27
Parcel # 193-292-26

PT. OF 193-292-09

360,163 SQ.FT.
8.268 ACRES

PT. OF 193-292-09

GUARD-RAIL

INACCESSIBLE

CREEK

Drill Hole
Found

IPF RRS

IPF RRS
N 33°37'23" W

37.21'

S
 5

6
°2

2
'3

7
" W

1
0
3
.1

6
'

S 33°37'23" E 145.86'

S
 5

6
°2

2
'5

3
" W

7
4
.9

6
'

S 33°37'23" E 491.19'(TOTAL)

S 
78

°4
3'2

7"
 E

89
.9

4'

37.78'

2.0'

2.0'

1
1
5
.2

3
'

S
 5

6
°2

2
'3

7
" W

S 33°37'36" E
12.74'

N
 5

6
°2

2
'3

7
" E

1
7
6
.9

0
'

S 33°37'23" E 116.00'

4.0'
S 33°37'33" E 177.65'

179.56'

697,905 SQ.FT.
16.022 ACRES

193-292-09

17,923 sq.ft.
0.411 Acres

17,261 sq.ft.
0.396 Acres

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOODWAY
SHADED ZONE AE - BASE FLOOD
ELEVATIONS DETERMIENED
PRE FEMA MAP# 3710458000K
REVISED FEB. 19, 2014

19 SPACES

SSS 33°37'23" EE 145.86'

SES
PA

CE
S

SP
AC

E
10

 S
PA

C
SP

AC

CE
S

CE
S

AC
ES

AC
E

AC
E

AC
E

PA
C

PP

225 S
5 S
5 S
5 SPSPSP AC

ES
AC

E
PA

C
PAPAPP

S 333°3737'23" E 1116.00'0

PARCEL NOT INCLUDED

19 SPACES

40'

73
.3

6'

49.22'

95.70'

THIS DRAWING AND ASSOCIATED .DWG FILES ARE THE PROPERTY OF BLUEWATER CIVIL DESIGN, LLC AND SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED, USED, OR REPRODUCED IN ANY WAY OTHER THAN AUTHORIZED IN WRITING.  © 2016 BLUEWATER CIVIL DESIGN, LLC

PLAN
REVISION

ISSUE
DATE

ISSUE
COMMENT

Drawing Scale:

DWG Name:

Project Number:

Date of Project:

Engineer of Record:

as noted

----

Certificates of Authorization:
SC C04212 - GA PEF005865

NC P0868 - AL CA4065E

M
at

th
ew

s 
Fe

st
iv

al

U
S 

H
w

y 
74

M
at

th
ew

s,
 N

C

7-26-2016 PRELIMINARY

----

A

---- --------

---- --------

---- --------

---- --------

---- --------

---- --------

bl
ue

w
at

er
 c

iv
il 

de
si

gn
, 

llc
19

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Pa
rk

  S
ui

te
 1

00
 

 G
re

en
vi

lle
, 

SC
 2

96
01

w
w

w
.b

lu
ew

at
er

ci
vi

l.
co

m
 

 in
fo

@
bl

ue
w

at
er

ci
vi

l.
co

m

---- --------

---- --------

---- --------

VE-1

VARIANCE EXHIBIT

N

S

EW

1 inch =     ft.

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE

060 60 120

60

24030

---- --------

Jason Henderson, P.E.
South Carolina PE# 22406

Georgia PE# 030711
North Carolina  PE# 031306

Alabama PE# 32054
Louisiana PE# 38895

Virginia PE# 0402053338



srobertson
Received
















	BoA minutes draft 2016 11-3.pdf
	HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL




